%ﬁ%?z;wmma
New CHINESE MEepicINE HoLDINGS LIMITED
N C M

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Annual Report 2004 F




CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISES MARKET ("GEM")
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristic of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM. The principal means of information dissemination on
GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazette newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed

issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of New Chinese Medicine
Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to New
Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the omission of
which would make any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT * E # & &

On behalf of the board of Directors, | am pleased to present
the annual results of New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March, 2004.

The Group continued to face some serious challenges in the
financial year under review. The outbreak of severe acute respiratory
syndromes (“SARS”) in March, 2003 lasted the first quarter of our
financial year. The negative sentiment of the overseas travellers,
especially the Japanese tourists, took much longer time to change.
The Group suffered from substantial drop in tourists’ visit to and
sales revenue of its retail outlet in Hong Kong. The Group also
observed a surge in mainland China visitors to Hong Kong with the
lifting of travel restrictions for independent Chinese travellers. The
Chinese travellers have very different spending habits compared to
the Group's major customer focus, the Japanese tourists. The Group
is constantly evaluating the situation and its impact.

In face of reduced activities, the Group went through a series
of management restructure during the year to reduce operation
overheads. On 17 March, 2004, the Company announced a proposal
on reduction in its share capital. As explained in the circular to
shareholders, this will upon court approval provide greater flexibility
to the Company in pricing future capital raising exercises when
circumstances arise. Besides, the Group has been actively exploring
ways to diversify its core business in reaction to changes in market
circumstances.

Looking ahead, the Group will ride on its experience in tourism
trade, with diversed product range that can cater for the independent
Chinese travellers. The Group will actively seek strategic business
partners to further its business objective in the development and
marketing of health supplement products.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere appreciation to all our clients,
investors, business partners and staff for their continued support
and confidence. We shall endeavour to explore every potential
opportunity to improve on the business results and investment returns
in the year ahead.

Wong Cheah Foo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June, 2004
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Retail business

The Group's core business in tourist trade was seriously affected
by the severe acute respiratory syndromes (“SARS”) in March, 2003.
The Group's retail outlet in Hong Kong was closed from early April,
2003 and was reopened in mid-July, 2003. Though SARS was brought
under control in June, 2003, more time was needed to build up the
visitors’ confidence, especially Japanese tourists, in coming to Hong
Kong. In January, 2004, what turned out to be isolated SARS cases
in northern China kept the tourists away again. Then, there was the
avian flu in the Asian countries. The tourist industry and the Group's
business had been adversely affected by a string of infectious diseases
and health issues. As a result, the number of Japanese tourists
visiting our retail outlet dropped dramatically to 2,592 (2003:
49,608).

E-commerce business

The development of the E-commerce business is to a large extent
reliant on the registration of Japanese tourists’ during their visit to
our retail outlet. The reduced number of visitors had resulted in
poor performance of our E-commerce business. However, the overall
traffic on business enquiries was sustainable through the internet.

Distributorship

During the year, the Group had been active in seeking overseas
distributors for its key products and third party licensed products.
While the Group had yet to realise any economic benefits from
distributorship, its extensive markets network will support the
expansion beyond the Hong Kong based retail business.

Prospects

The Group is currently restructuring its retail outlet to cater for
independent Chinese travellers from mainland China. Riding on the
Group's experience in tourist trade, the Group will widen the product
range by working with third party suppliers. We expect the number
of mianland Chinese visitors to increase in the coming year and we
are confident with our retail outlet business in Hong Kong.

The Group has recently reached some principal agreements to
distribute health supplements from two mainland health product
manufacturers to areas outside mainland China. This will support
our development in marketing network for our in-house and third-
party licensed products in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 32 & &t 8 & 2 #T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March, 2004, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$636,000 ( 2003: approximately
HK$14,021,000) and a net loss attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$23,887,000 (2003: approximately
HK$27,647,000).

The gross profit margin at around 44% was consistent with
that in the last year. There was not much changes in the retail price
structure except for some product promotions. The cost of good
sold was stable with management effort in controlling the stock
holding level.

In view of the current economic conditions, the Group did a
detailed review of its assets and being prudent made provisions for
the obsolete stocks, balance on technical know-how and some
overdue receivables from expired agreements.

In March, 2004, the Group management had successfully
negotiated a long-term loan from an independent party to finance
the working capital of the Group. The Group is confident that with
the provision of additional working capital, it can further pursue
the business objectives, as fine-tuned to match the changes in
external economic circumstances.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 March, 2004, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$215,000 (2003: approximately HK$751,000).

The Group obtained a long-term loan of upto HK$10,000,000
on 5 March, 2004 to satisfy the working capital requirements of the
Group. Repayment is due after one year and interest on outstanding
amount is 5.25% per annum. Besides the above and except for
short-term bank overdraft, the Group did not have any bank
borrowing as at 31 March, 2004.

As a result of the provisions on obsolete stocks, balance on
technical know-how and some overdue receivables from expired
agreements the Group showed total net liabilities of approximately
HK$13,535,000 at 31 March, 2004 (2003: total net assets of
approximately HK$10,114,000)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has foreign currency risk as a significant portion of
the Group's turnover is denominated in the Japanese Yen. Fluctuation
of the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars against the Japanese
Yen could affect the Group’s results of operations.

The Group closely monitors its foreign currency exposure by
converting the Japanese Yen received from the customers as soon
as practicable and does not hold position on Japanese Yen.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March, 2004, none of the Group’s assets was pledged
as security for liabilities (2003: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March, 2004, the Group had no contingent liabilities
(2003: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March, 2004, the Group employed a total of 8 full-
time staff (2003: 21). Remuneration is determined by reference to
market terms, the performance, qualifications and experience of
each individual employee. Discretionary bonus based on individual
performance and profit of the Group will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions. Other benefits
include Share Option Scheme for eligible employees.

EEESN®EDM

SMER R
AEBAZINERR

I%$¢@K%ﬁ
& m

=
A$BHUNUREEE BriAEXEHEFELR

SEgEESE -

AEEEUREFORAER  BRUES L
Bzt MAERERE  UBNERMEAX
HINERR

SEEEER
RZZFZ=F=A=+t—H AEELER
BEMSEEFER(CTE=F: &) -

MEARARBERACEARBERHE

RAFE  AKBYEENERAKBERLE
MELARRBELR -

FREE
RZZZENEF=A=+t—0 FAEELER
RAB(CEZ=F8) -

EERMEHE

RZZZ=F=A=+t—H FAEEEHE
BHeE (CEE=F 1R BT -Meh2Em
B ERETIRR  BERERME - BB
TEATRBRARE AR E Gz M A E R 8 T
moEREEABRZ S ERER - iR e’
FAEREES2 ERBBEE] -

ez RAER2A New CHNESE MepiciNne HoLbings LiMITED

ANNUAL ReporT 2004 % %5

1




ANNUAL R EPORT 2004 35 |10

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH THE ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS 2 K EEAE R B ER 21t &

Set out below is a comparison between the Group’s actual
business progress up to 31 March, 2004 and its business objectives
as stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 25 February,
2002:

I. TO EXPAND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
CAPABILITY AND PRODUCT LINES ON CHINESE
MEDICINE AND HEALTH SUPPLEMENT PRODUCTS

Proposed project progress

EREEER
Research and development on Chinese
medicine products

MERAZRPEER

Conduct research and development projects
Launch new Chinese medicine products

ETHERERER
HHEHPEER

Research and development on health
supplement products
HERGFZREE @

Conduct research and development projects

ETHERERIEAR
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Actual project progress
BEREBER

The formulation and Literature research on
the development of additional Chinese
medicine product that are completed at this
stage are retained for future development.
No further research and development projects
was commenced during the year. Pending on
the full completion of product research and
development, the launch of new products will
be further considered.
BRERETR BN EE R ER R B
MAIBRBIEE-—TRE - RFRN - &F
VERGE - FPHELBEEER - FERH
ELFREZETKE  HE-—TERELS
HEmM -

The 8 health supplement products have
obtained approval by the Ministry of Health,
Labour and Welfare in Japan. No further
research and was development project
commenced during the year.
SERREMCESBAREEHAE - B
FR - RETERGER —F2HRARRA
#IER -
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Proposed project progress

BEREER

Launch health supplement products

1 AR 2 EE

Joint research and development

REHER R R

Discuss with Hong Kong/overseas research institutes
Enter into joint research cooperative conduct research and
development majors arrangement
EEE,/ IR EE R
AUBAMAAELHETHERMERR

TO PURSUE GEOGRAPHICAL EXPANSION OF
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK IN THE PRC AND OF THE
CUSTOMER BASE

Proposed project progress

BEREER

PRC distribution outlets
B 75 8

Establish distribution outlets in Beijing and Hangzhou

IR RN R R D 5

Market the PRC distribution outlets to tour agencies

[ i 17 A+ 1 FE AP B 0 86 R

Identify site location for the outlet in Xian

RARDHERL

Actual project progress
BERERER

No additional health supplement product was
Launched during the year. Pending on
cooperative partners’ arrangement, the
market for the 8 health supplement products
will be further developed.

RER  TEREHZINREER - F&61E
BEHEMTHE  BE-THEZBER
REMZTS

Discussion was on-going with some PRC
research institutes, no agreement was reached
during the year.
HERETHEMARBETIR  REF
P A 5 BXCAE ] 10 3 o

BEATRART I HAKREREFE
i

Actual project progress
BEREBER

The Hangzhou outlet was opened for a period
but closed due to unsatisfactory results.
Overall, the proposed project was suspended,
pending on cooperative partners’ arrangement
and market demand on choice of loutlet
locations.
MMDEERA T —RER - EEKEARD
BE RO@E -BE8mME BRRABEEY
F FREBHTERTSEERENL 2 F
HH AT o

No further development after the
unsatisfactory result of the Hang Zhou outlet
operation in the last year.
EEMMDHELEXERMIBA
BE-SER -

Z &I

The plan was suspended, pending on
cooperative partners’ arrangement and market
demand on choice of outlet locations.
ZErEIERE  GEERELHERETRT
BRI 2L -
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Proposed project progress
BREBER

E-customer referral programme

HLEFHEETE

Establish overseas membership centers in Japan

EHARKIZENGER D

Launch membership promotional campaigns

HEHEeRHEBE

Expansion to overseas markets

Fi# &S T E

Discuss with US distributors, wholesalers and/or large
Enter into agreements with US distributors,
wholesalers and/or large chain stores

BB SN - HEE R AR EEE R
BB HE  HEEHRIAREHE L HE

Conduct feasibility studies on distributing products

to Australia and New Zealand
FhoHE M 2R R BT AN B 1T A 1T MR O

Discuss with distributors, wholesalers and/or large
chain stores in Australia and New Zealand
Enter into agreements with distributors, wholesalers
and/or large chain stores in Australia and
New Zealand
ERMRFEBOHEE  BEHR &
REGE S EHETTR A ERM K
FEMOHEE  BEER R
KRB E 6 5 R 3 1

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH THE ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS 2 K EEAE R B ER 21t &

Actual project progress
BEREBER

The overseas membership centre was in
operation during the year but the result was
unsatisfactory. The membership service was
reverted back to the Hong Kong office from
2 May, 2004 after the membership centre in
Tokyo ceased operation on 30 April, 2004.
BHNGEROLERFRNEE  HEBETTRE
B-BERERN_TTNFRAARKEE
% MERARSEFLR-_ZTZTNFINA=
THELEEE -

Further postponed due to poor economic
circumstances. This will be reconsidered in the
coming year in dealing with the mainland
visitors.

FAEERRAE BECHEAERFREIER
EREEBEZE -

The Group continued to explore on overseas
market opportunities but has yet to enter
into any agreement with overseas distributors.
AEBEBRRBITSEEKS  BRE
REFIND BT L ER B o

The feasibility study is finished in previous
year.

ATHREEELFETK

During the year, the Group continued to
look for suitable business partners
in these two countries.

EFED AKEEECEZMERRSHREMD
REEBRBH -
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lll. TO EXTEND BUSINESS INTO E-COMMERCE AND TO

UTILISE THE INTERNET AS MARKETING MEDIUM

Proposed project progress

BEREER

Health Portal

RIEAPI U

Review the software and hardware support and
upgrade the computer system and enhance features
on the portal

BB EBEEEREAERERUALR
BMARBE 2 HE

Translate the portal content into Korean

RAFIRUEARBEREX

“"Medicine Street”
Continue to construct “Medicine Street”

8 5y
EEEEEEE)

Add new products to “Medicine Street”

T 2 AN 88 B4

Promote “Medicine Street” to the PRC pharmaceutical
manufacturers through other portals, exhibitions,
newsletters and other traditional media
FREMAPIEY RES GAREMEREN
fr) F B0 R 5 7 i [ R i

Promote “Medicine Street” to the international
pharmaceutical manufacturers through other portals,
exhibitions, newsletters and other traditional media

FREMAPIRY REE  GAREMEREN
re) 8] AR 2 2 i (8 2 4
Continue to identify and enter into on-line distribution

agreements with pharmaceutical manufacturers

BBEYVEERRERALERBEBI VALY HIHE

. HEEXZEFHERTNBAEHRES

mEEREN

Actual project progress
BEREBER

There was constant monitoring of the
performance of the computer system during
the year. There was no particular investment
to further enhance the portal at this stage.
RERN  SELEEREMER IR
RERRELE-FSRERTAPIEY -

Further postponed, as no qualified translator
has been identified to conduct the project.
MAMERERBEMETARESM
B -

The “Medicine Street” project was suspended,
pending on cooperative partners’
arrangement.
[BELBAERE
AT o

HREBHRERT

4]0

Further delayed because the “Medicine
Street” was still under consideration. Will
resume activities upon completion of the
"Medicine Street”.

AL saR(BEGINEEERR -
FIEEG | TH G IRER BIE -

Further delayed and will resume activities
upon completion of the “Medicine Street”.
BIERU BN BEST] R %EERER B
T

Further delayed and will resume activities
upon completion of the “Medicine Street”.

BT B 0 (B 5 A7) SeAk 1R BN & k1B B R
T

Further delayed and will resume activities
upon completion of the “Medicine Street”.
BIERU BN BEST] R %EeRES B
Tiee
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Proposed project progress Actual project progress

BREBER BEREBER

Continue to establish b2b sales and marketing team Further delayed and will resume activities
upon completion of the “Medicine Street”.

BERTb2b HE R T I5HEERKE BIEHU BN BESG] K %EeRER B
Tt

Provision of information on Chinese medicine
and health supplement products

REUEHEFTERRRERZEH

Continue to update information in the Group's portal The Group’s portal was updated during the
year, as appropriate.

BETHASBAPIPULZERN RERN  AEEZ APFPUECEEMEE
e

E-education platform

EFHEFAE

Construct of the e-education platform The project continued to be suspended as

Finalise course structure and materials there was direct competition from other online
education operation by a local university.

BRESTHETFA BELE AR —HASRME LXK

BRERREBERAEMH EmMBEREERT
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH THE ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS % % R ERER K ER 21t ¥

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING AND PUBLIC OFFER
The Company obtained net proceeds, after deducting related
expenses of approximately HK$27 million from the placing and public
offer of shares. During the period from 7 March, 2002 (date of
listing) to 31 March, 2004, the Group has incurred the following
amounts to achieve the business objectives as set out in the

BERLAHREMSRERE

EHNBREBAS®%  ARANEERARE
ER BT 15 Z A %58 527,000,000 7 ° =
EE _FZA+H(ELWHE)E-_ZEEWNF=A
Z+—B8ER AEEZHATIFHEERES
BRERTFHERBZ

prospectus:
Intended Funding Actual Funding
RBAES ERBRES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Expansion of R&D capability and product BRAPERREESD
lines on Chinese medicine and health ZHALAEE S
supplement products ARE @RS 6,500 9,991
Expansion of distribution network BRHE S HE%
in the PRC, and its customer base REPER -
development of “e-customer referral BR[ETEP
programme”, and development of NERETE RER
overseas markets BINT 5 14,500 4,651
Health portal enhancement, e-commerce Eog (R APIAB I -
development and provision BRETHE
of on-line education R EHE 5,000 931
Expansion of Hong Kong office BREBMER - 165
General working capital —REEER 500 11,000
Total h 26,500 26,738
Notes: Brat
As indicated in the comparison of business objectives with the actual HMEBERREREBERLBAT - AEE

business progress, the Group had over the past periods followed the
business objectives set out in the prospectus and adjustments made as
appropriate. However, due to changes in economic circumstances, the
Group had suffered losses in the past periods and the funding from
the placing and public offer of shares was directed to working capital
provisions.

EREMEBEENELES  CREESRERML
EBER AW ARKERREZ  KXEEEHR
ZHRREER MEERAAEFRBROMESZ
BLCRIFEESSMEMR -
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Cheah Foo, aged 55, is the chairman of the Group.
Mr. Wong is responsible for overseeing the formulation of corporate
strategy of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group in October,
1994. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and has over 10 years of management
experience.

Mr. Kam Yiu Ming, Wilfred aged 43, is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Mr. Kam is responsible for the overall
management and business operation of the group. Mr. Kam joined
the Group in March, 2004. Mr. Kam is an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. He has over 20 years of business and
professional management experiences in Hong Kong and aboard.

Ms. Leung Oi Wah, aged 37, is the vice chairlady and founder
of the Group. Ms. Leung is responsible for the Group’s strategic
planning, retail operations and e-customer referral programme. Ms.
Leung has over 10 years of experience in the tourist-retailing business
and is a pioneer in introducing modernised Chinese medicine into
Japanese tourist industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. Gao Junqing, aged 73, is the co-director of research and
development and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s research
and development, in particular regarding the proprietary Chinese
medicine and health supplement products. Prior to joining the Group
in October, 2000, Mr. Gao had been supportive to the Group through
the collaboration between the Company and SRI. Mr. Gao is also
the director of the SRI and a committee member of a number of
research institutes of Chinese medicine in the PRC. In addition, Mr.
Gao has undertaken teaching and senior management roles in various
universities such as the West China University of Medical Sciences
in the PRC for over 40 years.

Professor Lin Daquan, aged 63, is the co-director of research
and development, in particular regarding bio-technology related
subject. Professor Lin has been a professor of biomedical engineering
at Chengdu University of Science and Technology since 1992 and
the vice director of the SRI. Professor Lin graduated from the Sichuan
University, majored in bio-physics. He is the president of the Sichuan
University's research centre for human engineering and medical
equipment. Professor Lin joined the Group in October, 2000.

NEw CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % & # & R B R & &
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Professor Lin has participated in extensive researches in
anthropomorphic radiological phantom, bio-physical functional
materials and synthesis of artificial radiological equivalent materials.
In recognition of his fine work in the field of bio-physics, Professor
Lin has been awarded the National Invention Award of China and
the Scientific and Technological Award of the Ministry of Public
Health of China. He is also listed in the “Five Hundred Leaders of
Influence” published by the American Biographical Institute.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Junya Kabeya, aged 67, graduated with a degree in
political science from the Waseda University in 1959 and is currently
the managing director of two trading companies after his retirement
from the Japan based international airline group of companies in
1999.

Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin, aged 48, Mr. Tsoi is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Real Estate Administration. Prior to joining the Company
in May, 2003, Mr. Tsoi has 22 years of experience in building
consultancy works. Mr. Tsoi is currently an executive director of a
building consultancy firm in Hong Kong.

MR GE2EEBABTFIR - EWWIBH
EOHRATIRS RSN 2AKERATE
I -MEBEEENMVEFEERRE  BEXH
A BRE RBEREHARE | R P EE LR
B2IME R #E] - B % J American
Biographical InstituteFT A6 [ B & AFE 7 A
#lz5) e

BUFUTES

BABGEE 677 BAXER-NTAN
FEENPRAAS  HEBAREBEM - — X
NWEFE-REXAERMREEEARERRZE
BERAELENEREMBEIRACETAL
i o

BELBERE 87 BELERBBHETR
AEHEEE - BR_ZZE=FAAMALRF
2R RNEEBERAEXRBE2FER BRERR
BRAEE - HEEBERALRZIHTES -
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its Shares
Listed on the Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM") of the Stock
Exchange Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2004
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 25.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo (Chairman)
Ms. Leung Oi Wah (Vice-Chairlady)
Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred
(appointed on 12 May, 2004)
Mr. Gao Junging
Professor Lin Daquan
Mr. Lau Ka Ho
(resigned on 24 March, 2004)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Junya Kabeya
Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin
(appointed on 14 May, 2003)
Ms. Wan Choi Ha
(resigned on 28 July, 2003)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Cheah Foo, Ms. Leung Oi Wah and Mr. Kam
Yiu Ming, Wilfred will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

NEw CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 8 % % R & [ 2 7 I
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors except Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from 1 February, 2002, which
will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months prior written notice.

Mr. Jun Ya Kabeya's term of office expired on 31 December,
2003 and was renewed for two years to 31 December, 2005.

Mr. Kam Yiu Ming, Wilfred and Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin are appointed
for specific terms.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in the "Directors’ service contracts”, the
continuing connected transactions and note 31 to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March, 2004, the interests of the directors and chief
executive and their respective associates in the share capital of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 29
of the Securities (Disclosure of interests) Ordinance (the “SDI
Ordinance”) were as follows:

Interest in
Director Type of interest
= BEHER

Ms. Leung Oi Wah Corporate (note 1)

REEL L E (WaE1)
Mr. Gao Junging Other (note 2)
mEERE Hit (fteF2)
Professor Lin Daquan Other (note 2)
MREHE Hit (ftiF2)
Notes:

1. These shares are registered in the name of Great Fair Limited
("Great Fair”) and Wealth Way Limited ("Wealth Way"). Great
Fair and Wealth Way are wholly owned by Ms. Leung Oi Wah
("Ms. Leung”).

EERBEN

FRERBALLEN  SRTEEHRAREG]
URBHE BT _F_A A 95
RU=% BQUBLENEEER-TRE—7
FHAOR=ZEAZELAEARNKLERL -

BAEGE L2 EHER-SE=F 125
=t—BEW YEEME-TTEFT-AS
+-8-

HRBLEERESERELENEEY -

EERERGHzESR

BRIEFENEH ] BERERSI R
HBBRMEINFAREES - AR A FHEEMAH
BRABEL2EITVHEAARESARFTER
IEERAEAREANAFETERNABNR
RAFEEMERERZERGH -

EERBH o ER

K-FTMF=A=+—F  RESEES
(RFIES) el ([ 25 25 D)) B0l 2 1
mARAFE I BRMARE  ARDEEER
TRBHRESIBRALRAE 2 ARTRES
ERRZBARANT

the Company'’s Number of
share capital Shares
RARXRARFER RO EA
%

42.82% 200,800,641
0.342% 1,600,000
0.342% 1,600,000

et

1. ZE WA A Great Fair Limited ([Great Fair])
K Wealth Way Limited ([ Wealth Way]) % 1%
ZEC o Great Fairz Wealth Way ¥ 2 B E 4
T([R&L)]) 28%A -
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2. These shares are registered in the name of Sichuan Research
Institute of New Medicine (“SRI”). Mr. Gao Junging and Prof. Lin
Daquan each owning 5% interest in SRI. The interest of Mr. Gao
and Prof. Lin in the share capital of the Company was indirectly
reduced to 1,600,000 shares each upon disposal by SRI on 5 May,
2003.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive
nor their associates had any interests in any securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 1 February, 2002, the Company adopted two option
schemes, namely, the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme"” and the “Share
Option Scheme”. Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

No options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
in securities” and "“Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities,
including debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors or the chief executive; or their spouses or
children under the age 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

NEw CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 8 % % R & [ 2 7 I
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March, 2004, the register of substantial shareholders
required to be maintained under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance
showed that the following shareholders had an interest of 10% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company:

BRER

Name of shareholders

Great Fair (H75%i)
Wealth Way (H#3i)

Great Fair (note i)

Wealth Way (note i)

Technique Enterprises Limited
("Technique Enterprises”) (note ii)

Notes:

Great Fair and Wealth Way are wholly owned by Ms. Leung, the
Vice-chairlady and the founder of the Group.

ii. Technique Enterprises is wholly owned by Mr. Cheung Chui who
is an independent third party.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other interests representing 10% or more of the
Company’ issued share capital as at 31 March, 2004.

DONATIONS
The Group did not make any charitable and other donations
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 March, 2004 are disclosed in note 31 to the
financial statements.

During the year, the Group has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions under the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”):

1. Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated October 10, 2000,
entered into between Fairco Investments Limited (“Fairco”)
as lessor and a subsidiary of the Company as lessee, the
Group agreed to lease office premises in Hunghom,
Kowloon from the lessor for a term of two years and four
months commencing from October 1, 2000 to January 31,
2003 at a monthly rental HK$75,000 (inclusive of rates,
government rent and management fee). The property is
occupied by the Group as office.

Technique Enterprises Limited
([ Technique Enterprises]) (ffzLii)

FERR

RZZZEMEF=A=1t—0 REAQFHE
A B IR B S5 1601 IR 377 < & B AR 4 it
IR ATBRERFAEEARAD HEITRA10%%K
Nz

Number of shares held
FERGHBE
Approximate
percentage of

Direct interest shareholding
EEER ERBANED L
89,435,440 19.07%
111,365,201 23.75%
49,019,607 10.45%

Wit -

Great Fair X Wealth Way¥9 i AN 5 B &) £ & &
Bl AR LL2BHESE -

ii. Technique Enterprises iR BEE A2 EHH -
RAERBULE=SE -

BEXHBEEN  NEBREENGHEIM
ATR-_ZEZENE=A=+—BHEELRF D%
TRRAR10% A F 24z o

BRt
AEERAFEALEFLAEREMEA
J%KO

HEBERS

AEERBZ-FEMFZAS+—BLE
BRI BBEA LT SR B RAN IV
RE -

AR P - AR T TR R A IR
% Eri R (TR IR LR A1) AT 2 83
2%

1. BEEBEEERAR([EHE]) (WA
AN EASE—HHBRR FEHEA) R
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=
=
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Fairco is a subsidiary of Great Fair, which holds 95% of the
issue share capital of the lessor. Great Fair is one of the
initial management shareholders and for the purpose of
the GEM Listing Rules, therefore, a connected person of
the Company.

The tenancy agreement was negotiated on an arm’s length
basis between the Group and Fairco. The Directors are of
the opinion that the terms of the agreement are on normal
commercial terms, being conducted in the usual and
ordinary course of business and are fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders are concerned.

LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, a firm of independent
property valuers, confirmed in the prospectus of the
Company issued on 25 February, 2002 (the “Prospectus”)
that the rental payable under the tenancy agreement is
fair and reasonable and the terms of the tenancy agreement
are at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms.

This transaction is exempted from the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rules 20.25(3) of the GEM Listing Rules as the annual
total consideration of the transaction is less than
HK$1,000,000.

The above mentioned tenancy agreement was terminated on
11 May, 2003. Thereafter, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a
new tenancy agreement for the same property with the landlord.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest in any business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 100% of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
41% of the Group’s total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 44% of the Group’s sales.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the issued capital of the Company) had any interest in
Group’s major suppliers for the financial year ended 31 March, 2004.

New CHINESE MEeDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 8 % £ R & R 2 7 I
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

For the year ended 31 March, 2004, the Company was in
compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as set out in
Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established on 1 February, 2002 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the relevant GEM
Listing Rules. The audit committee comprises of non-executive
directors, Mr. Junya Kabeya and Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin, and the Chairman
of the Group, Mr. Wong Cheah Foo.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings for
the purpose of reviewing the Company’s reports and accounts, and
providing advice and recommendations to the Board of Directors.

SPONSORS’ INTERESTS

Neither Kingston Corporate Finance Limited (“Kingston”) nor
its directors, employees or associates (as referred to Note 3 of Rule
6.35 of the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in any class of
securities of the Company or any other company in the Group
(including options or right to subscribe for such securities) as at 31
March, 2004.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 7 March, 2002 entered into
between the Company and Kingston, Kingston acted as the
Company’s continuing sponsor. The agreement expired on 31 March,
2004.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditors of the Company
on 19 May, 2004. At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4
June, 2004, an ordinary resolution was passed to appoint Messrs.
T.K. Choi and Company and P Tse & Company to fill the casual
vacancy. A resolution will be submitted to the annual meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. T.K. Choi and Company and P
Tse & Company as joint auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
LEUNG Ol WAH
VICE-CHAIRLADY

Hong Kong, 25 June, 2004
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T.K. CHOI & CO.

Certified Public Accountants

B & at R B A

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NEW CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 25 to 63
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you
solely and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability towards any other person for the contents
of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
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Fundamental uncertainties in respect of going concern

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made in note 2 to the financial statements concerning
the adoption of the going concern basis on which the financial
statements have been prepared. As explained in note 2 to the
financial statements, the Group sustained a net loss and operated
under a negative cash flow for the year. The Group also had net
current liabilities of HK$7,567,689 at the balance sheet date.

During the year, the Group arranged an unsecured loan facility
from an independent third party agreeing to advance a total sum of
HK$10,000,000 to the Group upon fulfillment of certain conditions
stipulated in the loan agreement. The Group drew an amount of
HK$3,800,000 out of such loan during the year to meet its liabilities
falling due.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon the Group attaining
profitable and cash positive operations in the longer term and, in
the meantime, the continuing financial support from the aforesaid
lender of loan. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might be necessary should the future operations
could not generate adequate working capital and / or the financial
support mentioned above would be withdrawn.

We consider that appropriate disclosures have been made in
respect of the fundamental uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis set out above and our opinion is not qualified in this
respect.
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31
March, 2004 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

T. K. Choi and Company
Certified Public Accountants

P Tse & Company
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June, 2004
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT % & W % &

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=1+—HILFE

2004 2003

—ZENE —ET=F

Notes HK$ HK$

i BT BT

(Restated)

(27

Turnover HEE 636,406 14,021,237
Cost of sales HERA (357,730) (7,942,809)
Gross profit e 278,676 6,078,428
Other operating income Hinge el A 6 1,815,781 81,051
Distribution and marketing expenses DHEETISHRER S - (4,311,608)
Administrative expenses THRAX (8,398,175)|  (19,585,550)
Allowances for doubtful debts REREE 7 (3,601,792) (4,423,487)
Allowances for inventory obsolescence BEFERE (4,709,165) -
Other operating expenses HEpEems (9,266,667) (5,669,389)
Loss from operations REER 8 (23,881,342) (27,830,555)
Finance costs FI5ER 9 (749) (4,182)
Loss before taxation HAIEE (23,882,091)|  (27,834,737)
Taxation I8 11 (5,166) (3,848)
Loss before minority interest KL EEZ R EE (23,887,257)|  (27,838,585)
Minority interest PEREER - 191,850
Net loss for the year AFEEEEREE (23,887,257)|  (27,646,735)

Loss per share BRER 12

- Basic —EK (5.09) centsi#fll |(5.89) centsi& 1l
- Diluted -#% (5.09) centsiEfli |(5.89) cents/& 1l
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26

At 31 March, 2004 A=ZZTNE=H=+—H

2004 2003
—BENE | —_TT=F
Notes HK$ HK$
k=3 BT BT
(Restated)
(E7))
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 13 332,816 711,713
Technical know-how SR E 14 - 9,266,667
332,816 9,978,380
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16 - 4,756,263
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EUEETE - Ze RBM A 19 1,612,461 4,499,980
Amounts due from directors B U E E R IE 18 34,615 95,079
Taxation recoverable AU E A 329,160 329,160
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERBAS 214,627 750,483
2,190,863 10,430,965
Current Liabilities REBEE
Creditors and accrued charges ERERBERESER 20 7,431,925 9,369,581
Amounts due to directors B EERE 18 2,016,513 600,641
Amounts due to related companies e BEE A R R 21 261,930 238,066
Taxation payable JE A B IR 5,166 3,848
Bank overdrafts RITEX 43,018 83,342
9,758,552 10,295,478
Net Current (Liabilities) Assets RE (BB EE (7,567,689) 135,487
Non-current Liabilities *kRBRME
Loan payable ERER 23 6,300,000 -
6,300,000 135,487
Net (Liabilities) Assets (BB EEFE (13,534,873)| 10,113,867
Capital and Reserves AR #E
Share capital [N 24 46,900,000 46,900,000
Reserves i (60,434,873)| (36,786,133)
(13,534,873) 10,113,867

The financial statements on pages 25 to 63 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June, 2004 and

signed on its behalf by:

Kam Yiu Ming, Wilfred

HEH

Director
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BALANCE SHEET £ E & & %

At 31 March, 2004 A=ZZTNFE=H=+—H

2004 2003
—BEENE| —TT=F
Notes HK$ HK$
k=3 BT BT

Non-current Asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRRZHRE 15 - 13,000,000

Current Assets RBEE
Debtors, deposits and prepayments RUEETE - Ze RBMARE 19 1,308,501 152,936
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE S 17 - 59,400
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERBAS 3,438 3,154
1,311,939 215,490
Current Liabilities REBaE

Creditors and accrued charges ERNERBRESER 20 1,378,553 1,005,683
Amount due to directors N EERE 18 75,500 18,000
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 61,000
1,454,053 1,084,683
Net Current Liabilities wREBEE (142,114) (869,193)

Non-current Liabilities EkRBEE
Loan payable ERER 23 6,300,000 -
6,300,000 -
Net (Liabilities) Assets (BB EEFE (6,442,114)| 12,130,807

Capital and Reserves AR #E
Share capital & A 24 46,900,000 46,900,000
Reserves B 26 (53,342,114)| (34,769,193)
(6,442,114) 12,130,807

Kam Yiu Ming, Wilfred Leung Oi Wah
HEH REE
Director Director
E o
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I CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY £ 4 K # % 8 %
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BE-ZTWMF=A=F+—HIEFE

Accumulated

Share Share Special  Exchange profits
capital premium reserve reserve (losses) Total
ZiHEH
Rx  BRHBE RERE  ERRE (F8) @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April, 2002 RZEE-_FNA—H 46,900,000 19,008,723  (39,998,440) - 12,333,767 38,244,050
Exchange differences arising BREEEENMDE
on translation of financial EeEBouBRE
statements of operations FEEZERZES
outside Hong Kong not MABEEZA
recognised in the consolidated BaRABRL
income statement N - - - 102,802 - 102,802
Net loss for the year FEBRIA - - - - (27,646,735) (27,646,735)
Dividend paid BRRE - - - - (586,250) (586,250)
At 31 March, 2003 WZEZ=F=ZA=+—H 46,900,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 102,802 (15,899,218) 10,113,867
Exchange differences arising BREEEENIMDE
on translation of financial EeEBo0BERE
statements of operations FEEZERZES
outside Hong Kong not MABEEZA
recognised in the consolidated BaRABRLZ
income statement N - - - 238,517 - 238,517
Net loss for the year FEERFE - - - - (23,887,257) (23,887,257)
At 31 March, 2004 RZZEZWFEZRA=1+—H 46,900,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 341,319 (39,786,475) (13,534,873)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Group Reorganisation prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2002.

BRREDARAROR T _F EWA
ETEEEAR  MKEBHBARKRNEEEER
BARARRKBEEMBETRND 2EEEME 2
EH e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT € R € R & &

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BE-ZTWNF=A=+—HIEFE

2004 2003
—ZEENF| —TT-F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E51)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss from operations B (23,881,342)| (27,830,555)
Adjustments for: ERTIZEERE
Interest income FE WA 11) (49,467)
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BERRE
and equipment ZIE 377,744 603,546
Amortisation of technical know-how BT 08 8 9,266,667 4,633,333
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEME  BEREE
and equipment ZIE#E 2,443 944,285
Allowances for doubtful debts RIZEREE 3,601,792 4,423,487
Allowances for inventory obsolescence BRGTFEEE 4,709,165 -
Operating cash flows before movements RETEEEREEA 2
in working capital KEXBHERE (5.923,542)| (17,275,371)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FEZRD (Em) 47,098 (4,374,358)
(Increase) decrease in debtors, JEWBRIA - e RIEL
deposits and prepayments HIE 2 (38 m) R 4 (714,273) 6,824,174
Decrease in amounts due BREERHEZRD 60,464 249,352
from directors
Increase in creditors and EREEREFER 2
accrued charges Ehn 562,344 227,194
Cash used in operations KEXBHMER (5.967,909)| (14,349,009)
Interest paid FEHX (749) (4,182)
Income tax paid BERFEH (3,848) (329,680)
Income tax refunded BRENGEN - 497,751
NET CASH USED IN REXBMHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReRE (5,972,506)| (14,185,120)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELEB (1,290)[  (1,239,126)
Purchase of technical know-how BB BT A - (9,900,000)
Decrease in deposits paid BEREEZED - 1,120,670
Interest received B F B 11 494,481
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZDFERSEH (1,279)|  (9,523,975)
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I CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 4% 4 B 4 # £ %

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BE-ZTWMF=A=F+—HIEFE

2004 2003
—EENE —ZTE=F
HK$ HK$
B BT
(Restated)
(E7))
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METEH
Increase in amounts due to directors JEREEHEZ &N 1,415,872 842,241
Increase in amounts due to JE A R & N B FUR
related companies Z & 23,864 1,146,313
Proceeds from minority shareholders RELHBREZHIA - 191,850
Dividend paid BRRE - (586,250)
Loan raised ERESHE 3,800,000 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHFABELTE 5,239,736 1,594,154
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBREEEEBEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS W (734,049) | (22,114,941)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FOAzHER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR Re%EHEA 667,141 22,679,280
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXgexE
RATE CHANGES 238,517 102,802
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZEER
AT END OF THE YEAR Re%EHEA 171,609 667,141
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRBEEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEEFESW
Bank balances and cash BITEGFELR 214,627 750,483
Bank overdrafts RITEX (43,018) (83,342)
171,609 667,141
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf % 3 & Fff &

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=1+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using
the merger basis of accounting at the time of the Group
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company's shares in
2002. Under this basis, the Company has been treated as the
holding company of all subsidiaries for the financial years
presented and the Group has been regarded as a continuing
entity.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND FUNDAMENTAL
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group sustained a consolidated net loss from ordinary
activities attributable to shareholders of HK$23,887,257 for the
year ended 31 March, 2004 and had consolidated net current
liabilities of HK$7,567,689 and consolidated net liabilities of
HK$13,534,873 as at 31 March, 2004. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors of the Company have taken
careful consideration to the current and anticipated future
liquidity of the Group and its ability to attain profitable and
cash positive operations in the immediate and longer terms.

The Group closed its retail outlets in Hong Kong in April 2003
following the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome
("SARS"). The adverse economic financial impacts of SARS far
exceeded what the directors of the Company had anticipated.
Responding to such abrupt disruption to the Group’s business
activities, the directors of the Company decided, despite of re-
opening the Group’s retail outlets in the later time, to effectively
scale down its operations by reducing the Group's staff and
other operating costs. The directors of the Company tended to
take such conservative operating policy until the indications on
economic recovery became apparent.

1.
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND FUNDAMENTAL
UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

During the year, the Company entered into a loan agreement
with an independent third party for a loan in the total sum of
HK$10,000,000 to be advanced to the Company. The loan was
principally granted for providing adequate working capital to
the Group. As at March 31, 2004, the draw-down by the Group
amounted to HK$3,800,000. The loan and interest thereon
would be due for repayment in full by June 30, 2005. The
directors of the Company believed that such arrangement would
relieve the Group5 liquidity difficulty.

In addition, the directors of the Company have positively
explored business opportunities with manufacturers in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") on distributorship of their
health supplements and related products outside PRC. Coped
with this new development and the focus on tourist trade with
increasing PRC visitors to Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company are optimistic to the Group’s target of profitable and
cash positive operations in the immediate and longer terms.

Notwithstanding the uncertainties on full resumption of the
Group's business activities and its liquidity concern, the financial
statements have been prepared on the assumption that the
Group will continue to operate as a going concern for the
foreseeable future. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the liquidity of the Group could be maintained in
the coming year, after taking into consideration the conservative
measures implemented to date and the aforesaid financing
arrangement. The directors of the Company have confidence
that, upon the current recovery of Hong Kong economy and
the Group's new business development, there exists positive
indication for full operation of the Group’s business activities
and for attainable operating profit and cash flow. Accordingly,
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf % 3 & Fff &

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=1+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARD

With effect from this year, the Group has adopted for the first
time the revised Statement of Standard Accounting Practice
No. 12 ("SSAP12") issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. The principal effect of the implementation of
SSAP12 is in relation to deferred tax. The adoption of SSAP12
has resulted in the changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
but has had no significant effect on the results for the current
or prior accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment has been required.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The financial statements have been prepared and in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within
the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Turnover
Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold during the year.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=+—HILFE

34

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and any identified
impairment loss.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual value,
where appropriate, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Over the shorter
of the term of the
lease, or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment

and system 30%
Furniture, fixture and

equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income statement.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how represents the medicine related technical
know-how acquired. Technical know-how is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment loss.
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost over its estimated
useful life of three years on a straight-line basis.

Medicine research and development expenditure
Expenditure incurred on medicine research activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
medicine development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a clearly-
defined project will be recovered through future commercial
activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its estimated economic useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Website development costs

Expenditure incurred in the development of new website and
enhancement of existing website, including expenditure incurred
in the development and enhancement of contents, is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprise all costs of purchase, is calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
the business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are re-
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling on the
balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are
dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Income
and expense items are translated at the same rates. All exchange
differences arising on consolidation are classified as equity and
transferred to exchange reserve. Such translation differences
are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which
the operation is disposed of.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because if excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for in full, using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
remains with the lessors are accounted for as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease
terms.

Retirement benefits scheme
Payments to the Group's Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are charged as expenses as they fall due.

NEw CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % & # & R B R & &
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BZ-_ZTTNF=A=+—HIEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 5. ¥BRMESDE
Business segments STk
The principal activities of the Group are sale of Chinese medicine AEBCFEXBREBTERETHEH
through retail and E-Commerce divisions. These activities are ERBE - ZEEBNASEERTFENH
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment ER B
information.
Segment information about these businesses is presented below. BEEBZDHERZIWMT o
Year ended 31 March, 2004 BE—_TENF-A=+—HIFE
Retail E-Commerce  Elimination Consolidated
28 ETHE I 8 RE
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
REVENUE i
External sales HINEE 581,535 54,871 - 636,406
Inter-segment sales D EIHE 3,242 - (3,242) -
Total revenue s 584,777 54,871 (3,242) 636,406
RESULT ES
Segment loss D EE (4,912,597)  (2,051,590) (6,964,187)
Interest and other Y8 -Niil
operating income B A 1,815,781
Unallocated corporate RO
expenses 53 (18,732,936)
Loss from operations KEEBE (23,881,342)
Finance costs BB A (749)
Loss before taxation i A & 18 (23,882,091)
Taxation W18 (5,166)
Net loss for the year FEER (23,887,257)
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BZ_ZTTWNF=A=+—HIEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

Business segments (continued)

At 31 March, 2004

5. ¥BRHES I (HF)

EXDW (E)
R-ZFEEWF=ZA=+—H

BALANCE SHEET BERRER
Retail E-Commerce Consolidated
€ EFRE 2E
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 321,546 121,158 442,704
Unallocated corporate assets AP EEE 2,080,975
Consolidated total assets REBEE 2,523,679
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities HEBE 2,264,225 - 2,264,225
Unallocated corporate liabilities AP EERE 13,794,327
Consolidated total liabilities ReEBEE 16,058,552
OTHER INFORMATION Hip &R
Unallocated
Retail E-Commerce corporate Consolidated
€ ETHE AKoBeE RE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Additions to property, plant REVE  BE
and equipment i 1,290 - - 1,290
Depreciation of property, mE - BEREE
plant and equipment ZIE 239,261 138,483 - 377,744
Amortisation of technical SR (IpIl- v
know-how B - - 9,266,667 9,266,667
Allowances for doubtful debts R38R B & 300,000 - 3,301,792 3,601,792
Allowances for inventory BRTFEEE
obsolescence 659,165 - 4,050,000 4,709,165
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BEX
plant and equipment HBECEE - - 2,443 2,443
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=1+—HILFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)
Business segments (continued)
Year ended 31 March, 2003

B (&)

5. ¥BRHESD I (&)

R-_BEE=F=ZH=1+—H

Retail E-Commerce Elimination Consolidated
€ ETHE I 85 TRE
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(Restated)
(E%)
REVENUE iy &
External sales HoNEE 13,884,571 136,666 - 14,021,237
Inter-segment sales DEHE 9,531 - (9,531) -
Total revenue el 13,894,102 136,666 (9,531) 14,021,237
RESULT &
Segment loss D EE (9,481,763)  (1,355,840) (10,837,603)
Interest and other MEREMD
operating income A 81,051
Unallocated corporate KO
expenses 53 (17,074,003)
Loss from operations A (27,830,555)
Finance costs BisER (4,182)
Loss before taxation i A & 18 (27,834,737)
Taxation IR (3,848)
Loss before minority RETDERE
interest BaAlEE (27,838,585)
Minority interest DYRREER 191,850
Net loss for the year FEERA (27,646,735)
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BZ_ZTTWNF=A=+—HIEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 5. ¥XRHMED I (&)
(continued)
Business segments (continued) ERSH (8)
At 31 March, 2003 RZFEE=F=HA=+—H
BALANCE SHEET EEEEX
Retail E-Commerce Consolidated
€ ETHE TEe
HK$ HK$ HK$
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 1,739,250 321,146 2,060,396
Unallocated corporate assets AP EEE 18,348,949
Consolidated total assets RAREE 20,409,345
LIABILITIES a&
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,738,808 - 1,738,808
Unallocated corporate liabilities AP EERE 8,556,670
Consolidated total liabilities mARai 10,295,478
OTHER INFORMATION HittgR
Unallocated
Retail E-Commerce corporate Consolidated
Z2€ ETHE KAEMEE =E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Additions to property, = E
plant and equipment B 1,167,419 71,707 - 1,239,126
Additions to technical N B BT A
know-how - - 13,900,000 13,900,000
Deprecation of property, mE - HER
plant and equipment HETE 323,190 280,356 - 603,546
Amortisation of technical BTz
know-how %S - - 4,633,333 4,633,333
Allowances for doubtful REREE
debts 2,380,000 - 2,043,487 4,423,487
Loss on disposals of HEME BE
property, plant and Rt BB
equipment 944,285 - - 944,285

40
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BZ-_ZTTNF=A=+—HIEFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 5. ¥BRHESD I (&)
(continued)
Business segments (continued) ERSE (8)
At 31 March, 2003 R-ZBEE=F=ZH=1+—H
Certain financial information relating to business segment for BE_ZTZ=F=A=+—BLFEA@X
the year ended March 31, 2003 had been re-classified to Bofze e THBERNKEEN I BURE
conform with the current year’s presentation. AEEZEHARN °
Geographical segments &t E 2
No geographical segment information is presented as over 90% HRAEBEEBBIO%HEEEY X6 &
of the Group’s sales operations, results, assets and liabilities are ERBEDREES  MUEZHEHED
derived from Hong Kong. B o
6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. Htt @& WA
2004 2003
—ZEENF —EE-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other operating income comprises: Hmgg i A B
Interest earned on bank deposits fE?ﬂ_ 2SN 11 49,467
Write back of creditors N BR R 2 B m 1,279,090 30,000
Foreign exchange gain, net $7|\¢+¥ Rl (F58) 658 1,584
Service income AR 75 UL A 533,530 -
Other income H A I A 2,492 -
1,815,781 81,051
7. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS 7. REWRRBME
2004 2003
—ZEENF —EE-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Allowances for doubtful debts comprise: RERBEHEREUATEAE
Amount due from a substantial shareholder — fEU— T B E 7 38 - 1,529,227
Deposits paid to supplier/consultant (note) ENTHER BRz2ES 2,536,500 514,260
Deposits paid to travel agencies ENTIREREZES 300,000 2,380,000
Others H A 765,292 -
3,601,792 4,423,487
Note:  The balance of deposit to a consultant for procuring new e - ATEERAFES 2REREERNRK

businesses remained outstanding at the balance sheet date.

The directors of the Company considered that the allowances

for doubtful debts provided was adequate but not excessive.

AEEZRAMRERZRBERAM A
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8. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 8. REFE
2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss from operations has been arrived KEBEEHR T
at after charging: B8
Amortisation of technical know-how (note j) i K08 = B 85 (Hi35i)
(included in other operating expenses) (BEt A EpE 2RY) 9,266,667 4,633,333
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE
- Curent —KAEE 160,000 400,000
— Underprovision in prior year - LFBRBIE 25,288 209,770
185,288 609,770
Business agent introduction fees EBRENGBE - 3,000,000
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BERRE
and equipment ZIE 377,744 603,546
Loss on disposals on property, plant HEME BERZE
and equipment ZIEE 2,443 944,285
Medicine research and development costs B E R A - 90,566
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEZELEAD
rented premises itk 1,054,601 1,636,055
Staff costs (note ji): 8 TR (B azii)
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EEWe (Mit10) 1,601,226 2,318,714
Other staff costs Hi B8 TRA
— salaries and other allowances — BB R HoA AL 2,014,416 6,318,269
- retirement benefit scheme — RIRTEF IR
contribution 51,655 228,559
3,667,297 8,865,542
Website development cost MU BERRAE - 931,075
Notes: Biat

Amortisation was provided to write off the cost of medicine related
technical know-how over its estimated useful life of three years
on a straight-line basis. The annual provision amounted to
HK$4,633,333. Upon reviewing the current market conditions and
the low business volume arising therefrom, the directors of the
Company, tending to a conservative approach, accounted for the
impairment of such asset by providing additional amortisation
thereon amounting to HK$4,633,334, making the total sum
charged in the consolidated income statement to HK$9,266,667.

ii. Staff costs disclosed above included total retirement benefit scheme

contribution of HK$63,575 (2003: HK$262,988).

NEw CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % & # & R B R & &
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MKER
2004 2003
—EEWmE —ETE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: THEBZHME
Bank loan and overdrafts wholly BRAEFABEEE Y
repayable within five years RITERREX 749 4,182
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 10. EEMERTEREFHES
EMPLOYEES
2004 2003
—EEWmE —ETE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors =
Fees Be - -
Other emoluments: Hp@e
Salaries and other benefits HM R EMmER
(net of amount waived) (BB WEFHA) 1,589,306 2,192,785
Bonuses T4 - 91,500
Retirement benefit scheme MBS MK
contribution 11,920 34,429
1,601,226 2,318,714
2004 2003
—EEWmE —TE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Analysed into: a2
Director A EEH - 220,000
Director B v 492,000 618,000
Director C BER 660,000 1,068,600
Director D = 100,000 356,400
Director E BEER 349,226 55,714
Director F BEC - -
Director G EERE - -
Director H EE¥ - -
1,601,226 2,318,714
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For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The amounts disclosed above include other emoluments of
HK$100,000 (2003: HK$356,400) payable to independent non-
executive directors. No directors’ fees were payable to
independent non-executive directors in both years.

During the year ended 31 March, 2003, two executive directors
waived part of their emoluments as follows:

10. EEMEREEBRSHMHES (4)

PR BRERERERT B LR TESH
b B4 100,000/ 7T (Z T T =4 : 356,400/
JT) o MAMBEFE - AEBEWERE LI
TEEINAEMNEZRS -

REZE-_ZTT=F=-A=+—HILFERN"
EMAEEHERSZMEMT

2004 2003

—EENE —TE=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Director A EEH - 371,000
Director B v - 474,000
- 845,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

Employees

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, three (2003:
four) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2003:
one) individuals were as follows:

RAFER - AEE Y EFE S MR
 ERREMBIRNNBERZFEHER
BBRE MESTERECAME -

B8
AEBLE RRFMERETFA=2(Z2%
=FCER)RARANESE - EMeE IR L
X EBME(CTT=F : —F)zBen
T

2004 2003

—EENE —ET=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries and other benefits H R EMmER 372,574 290,500
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIKET B4 3R 10,868 8,000
383,442 298,500
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11. TAXATION 1. B8

2004 2003
ZEENF —TT=F
HK$ HK$
BT AT

The charge comprises: BEZHEE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax FAEFNEH

- Current year - AREE - -
— Overprovision in prior year — AR FERBEEE - -
Taxation in other jurisdiction H A AEBE2MIE 5,166 3,848
5,166 3,848

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group incurred a tax loss for the
year (2003: Nil).

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Details of unprovided deferred taxation are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

HRAEBERFEEARSIBBESBRE K
BEEFBRRARBAFCHERE(—ZT
=F E) o

EA A ERE IR EAERAEEBEY
BATHEHE -

ABBEREEMRB 2 FEHRPHEREME
22 °
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12.

LOSS PER SHARE

12. BREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based

on the following data:

BREANEEERDIRETIIEEAE

2004 2003
—ZEENMEF —EE=F
HKS HKS
BT BT
Loss for the purpose of basic HEERERRBEBE
loss per share FTER A e B8
- Net loss for the year - AEEBEEHE 23,887,257 27,646,735
Number of shares
BB
Weighted average number of shares AEESREKRER
for the purpose of basic loss FiT 5% A3 /0 A% 19
per share M & 469,000,000 469,000,000
Effect of dilutive potential shares in RERE BERN
respect of share options HEE - -
Weighted average number of shares FEEREEEE
for the purpose of diluted loss FiT 5% F3 /0 A% 19
per share AT 1 8 469,000,000 469,000,000
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BER®RE
Computer Furniture,
Leasehold equipment fixture and Motor
improvements and system equipment vehicles Total
BB 8 \
HE£E SES R#&EE AE wy
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
THE GROUP rEE
CosT DR
At 1 April, 2003 RZZEZT=F
MA—H 532,861 867,866 115,326 100,331 1,616,384
Additions R - - 1,290 - 1,290
Disposals & - - (13,148) - (13,148)
At 31 March, 2004 R_ZTWF
—A=+—8 532,861 867,866 103,468 100,331 1,604,526
DEPRECIATION AND HER#H
AMORTISATION
At 1 April, 2003 RZZET=F
MA—H 310,918 476,636 39,361 77,756 904,671
Provided for the year FEBE 110,015 225,512 19,642 22,575 377,744
Eliminated on disposals i 6 B 8 - - (10,705) - (10,705)
At 31 March, 2004 R_ZTWF
—A=+—8 420,933 702,148 48,298 100,331 1,271,710
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 March, 2004 R_ZTWF
—A=+—8 111,928 165,718 55,170 - 332,816
At 31 March, 2003 R-ZTE=F
=A=+—H 221,943 391,230 75,965 22,575 711,713
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14. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW 14, BT H &
HK$
BT
THE GROUP rEE
COST 5N
At 1 April, 2003 and RZZET=FHA—BR
at 31 March, 2004 R-ZZTZENF=ZA=+—H 13,900,000
AMORTISATION B
At 1 April, 2003 R-_EE=FWH—H 4,633,333
Provided for the year REEE 9,266,667
At 31 March, 2004 R-ZFFMF=A=1—H 13,900,000
NET BOOK VALUE RHEZEE
At 31 March, 2004 RZZEZWNFE=ZRA=1+—H -
At 31 March, 2003 R-FE=F=A=1+—H 9,266,667
15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RNBARZRE
THE COMPANY
AAF
2004 2003
= sk —EF=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEE TR (KA E) 40,000,000 40,000,000
Less: Impairment loss B ORERBE (40,000,000) (27,000,000)
- 13,000,000

The allowance for impairment loss in respect of the costs of
unlisted shares of subsidiaries is based on the deficiency of the
investment costs over the recoverable amount of the relevant
subsidiaries attributable to the Group at 31 March, 2004.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March, 2004 are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital outstanding as at
the balance sheet date.

FRMBARELMROKAZRERSRD
BEASER _ZTNF=A=1+—HEHE
A BRI 2 B AT R B R OE 2 4% A RS A T
ARAMBARAR -_ZTEMNF=A=1t—H
ZABEN M3

REER SHBARBEEAREERDR
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16. INVENTORIES 16. 7 &
THE GROUP
KEE

2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials JR &} 4,507,686 4,196,128
Finished goods B 201,479 560,135
4,709,165 4,756,263
Less: Allowances for obsolescence BEFERE (4,709,165) -
- 4,756,263
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense amounted to FEMREI121,7688 L (Z T T =F

HK$121,768 (2003:HK$1,117,343). 1,117,343%7T) R ERX ©

17. AMOUNT DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 17. BB A B IE
THE COMPANY
AKAF

2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amount due from subsidiaries JE U B /B8 A ) FU0R - 59,400

=

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

BRAIZRFBEER 2ERFAEE

A

repayable on demand.
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18. U () EE XA

18. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS
Particulars of the amounts due from (to) directors are as follows:

(
A () EEFEZFBOT

THE GROUP
rEE
Maximum
amount
due from
Balance Balance the directors
at at during
31.3.2004 1.4.2003 the year
R-ZZEZENME K-EE=F
ZA=+-8 mA—R RAEE
ZER ZEF BEE&R
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
Directors = k=3 BT BT BT
(Restated)
(&)
Ms. Leung Oi Wah Z2EELLT (i) (902,321) (221,241) -
Ms. Leung Oi Wah Z2EELLT (ii) 34,615 85,079 112,232
Ms. Wan Choi Ha BYELL (i) (50,000) - -
Mr. Junya Kabeya BEA B 4 (i) (158,400) (158,400) -
Mr. Lau Ka Ho ARELE (i) (52,600) (74,000) -
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo EEERE (i) (853,192) (147,000) -
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo BERELE (ii) - 10,000 10,000
(1,981,898) (505,562)
Represented by: DWW
Amounts due from directors JEMEE A 34,615 95,079
Amounts due to directors JENEZHIA 2,016,513 600,641
THE COMPANY
NN
Maximum
amount
due from
Balance Balance the directors
at at during
31.3.2004 1.4.2003 the year
R-ZEENEF —EE=F
ZA=+-H REA-H RAEE
ZER &R BEE#&R
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
Directors EE k=3 BT BT BT
Ms. Leung Oi Wah ;{—%?\%ﬁi (i) (25,500) (18,000) -
Ms. Wan Choi Ha BRERL (i) (50,000) - -
(75,500) (18,000) -

HEBEEERAERAXA
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18. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS (continued) 18. B (F) EEFE (&)
Notes: lioga
(i) The amounts due to directors at March 31, 2004 represent (i) R-ZZMNF=A=+—BENEZHEINX
advances from the directors during the year. The directors have EEESHTZRY - EERRAEETERE
confirmed that the amounts are unsecured, interest free and will R 2ERETEHAEZEARHTZEAR
not be demanded for full repayment within twelve months from EREBEHEE -

the balance sheet date.

(i) For the year ended 31 March, 2004, the amount due from directors (iy REZE-TTWMF=A=+—HLFE Bk
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. EEFEAEER LERNFEREE -
19. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. BWERIE - RERAENRE
The sales to the majority of customers were with terms of cash ABOBEP 2 HEEANEINRARE - M
on delivery. Other trade debtors were given the credit terms for BWRESEEB2RESR KN F 308290
30 to 90 days. =
The following is an aged analysis of debtors, deposits and EWERE  ZeRBENFEREER ZER
prepayments as at the balance sheet date: DMMT :
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEHE AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
—ZENME —EE=F —ZENME —EE=F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade debtors fEYE 58RI
0 to 30 days 0&30H - 57,323 - -
31 to 60 days 312 60H - 8,381 - -
- 65,704 - -

Prepayment and deposits BNRBERZS

— prepayments —JE S A - 203,481 10,126 152,936
- deposits (note i) —&e (M) 439,000 300,000 - -
— deposit paid to — AR
suppliers ki & - 160,694 - -
439,000 664,175 10,126 152,936
Others (note i) Hofth 338 (K &) 4,775,253 3,770,101 1,298,375 -
Less: Allowances for REEREB
doubtful debts (3,601,792) - - -
1,612,461 4,499,980 1,308,501 152,936
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19. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

20.

21

Notes:

Deposits were paid to business agents for introducing strategic
partners and/or customers to the Group.

ii. Others included an amount of HK$2,536,500

(2003:

HK$3,000,000) deposit paid to a consultancy company for
procuring new businesses to the Group.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
The credit terms of the trade creditors range from 30 to 60

days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors and accrued

19. BWRIE - BERBANRE (H)

Wit -

BREDABEREXN  UEAXEEN AR
BMUBHER/HEF -

i HEMFEeEAREENBHEBNRN—HE
MABS 225365008 T4 (—Z22T=
4 :3,000,000/87C) °

20 BN RERESER
ERNESEBRZHENHEI0E0ATE -

BNESEEREEAREER ZKED

charges as at the balance sheet date: G UNNE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE b NN
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EEWMEF —TE=F —EEWME —ETE=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Restated)
(&)
0 to 30 days 0£30H - 47,656 - -
31 to 60 days 31£260H - 309 - -
61 to 90 days 61£290H - 24,533 - -
> 90 days ##i#A90H - 14,558 - -
Trade creditors ENE SRR - 87,056 - -
Other creditors and Hfth S FRIE R
accrued expenses e & A 7,431,925 9,282,525 1,378,553 1,005,683
7,431,925 9,369,581 1,378,553 1,005,683

. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

Amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed repayment terms.

21. ENBERARARE

FENEEARRAREER

ez RAER2A New CHNESE MepiciNne HoLbings LiMITED
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22. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAXATION
At the balance sheet date, the major components of

22. ABBELEHRER
REER REBETRBEEE (AR ZE

unrecognised deferred tax asset (liability) are as follows: ZEH T
THE GROUP
rEE
2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Tax effect of temporary difference EREEMELARBTE
because of: ZRA :
Excess of tax allowances over R ERBITE
depreciation (23,315) (55,645)
Tax losses HIAEE 3,171,771 2,223,201
3,148,456 2,167,556

The amount of unprovided deferred tax credit (charge) of the

AEBRFE ARBERTEH BER ()

Group for the year are as follows: TEMT
2004 2003
—ZEENF —EE-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shortfall (excess) of tax allowances RRBELORN (BB)INE
over depreciation 32,330 (1,976)
Tax losses arising FEEXHEEE 948,570 2,169,752
980,900 2,167,776
The Company did not have any significant unprovided deferred REER  RARUEFTMERRBBEL
taxation at the balance sheet date. BiIg o
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23. LOAN PAYABLE

23.

BN ER

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

KEAREAF
2004 2003
—EENE —ET=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The loan is unsecured and will not be WEFAEEARETS
demanded for repayment within HEERRT T /A
twelve months from the balance REREE :
sheet date:
— interest bearing (5.25% p.a.) —A B (FB525%) 3,800,000 -
— interest free -%8 2,500,000 -
6,300,000 -
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, R
2004 2003
=2 11,3 —ET=4
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BHEE EE 15 % 8 EfE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shares of HK$0.1 each FREENET
% 13
Authorised: EEBRA
At beginning of year FONRFL
and at end of year 2,000,000,000 200,000,000 | 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARRAE
At beginning of year FHRFL
and at end of year 469,000,000 46,900,000 469,000,000 46,900,000
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25. SHARE OPTION
The Company has the following share option schemes:

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 1 February, 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives to recognise the contribution of certain
directors, employees and advisor of the Company to the
growth of the Group and/or to the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("GEM"). The period within
which the shares must be taken up under an option of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of
3 years commencing on 1 February, 2002. Save for the
legal advisor, the grantees have to hold one-third of the
options granted for a period of six months after listing,
another one-third for a period of twelve months after listing
and the remaining one-third for a period of twenty four
months after listing. HK$1 is payable on acceptable of an
option within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
25,500,000 shares. The exercise price for shares under Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was 50% of the issued price
when the shares of the Company were offered to the public.

Details of the movement in share options granted on 18
February, 2002 under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
during each of the two years ended 31 March, 2004 are
set out as follows:

NEw CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % & # & R B R & &

25.

RE R e &

ZN/N

(i)

AANTRERES

BERARBRARERETE
R-_TE-F-A—H ARAKHK—
BREREE ([EX AR BRI RE
PRiERTEl]) o

BRAFABRAZERESEZENE
EXGHAEEERL/IHARAR
NHEEEBMARZMBERABERR
(T8I ]) LA BRZETES - &
ROFRBRARERESE R _TT
F_A-HRABRB=ZFL£¥ A&l
HEREERD - RARBERN - BBA
BREBENVEABENER (B LHHH
1) 1B3REET @A (B LHEH
1) R TARBE _TEEA (B L
B FItR) - I EARBRE - QIARKH
AEREE -+ NAX[MUET -

REBEXARBRATRERET &A%
112 W10 4228 4 25,500,0000% - B IX A
RBRAIRERENENRBEROER
BRABRMAARBRERLKS0% °

15 2 0 28 B 40 SRR B 4 T 800 =
TE-E-AH/\AEH BRERE
E-ETMEZAS+—ALMEEE
ZEBREDT ;
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25. SHARE OPTION (continued) 25. RBWE (F)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BRABMBRARBERETS (&)
For the year ended 31 March, 2004 REZE-_FTEMFZA=F+—HILFE

Number of share options

BREYR

Exercise price  Outstanding at ~ Lapsed during  Outstanding at

Exercisable period per share 1 April, 2003 the year 31 March, 2004

R-BB=F R-BEMF

mA-H rEE ZR=t-H

THESE TE i REATE b3 i R EATE
HK$
BT

Category: Directors
Bhl 2% September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
TEE-FNALAE-EERF-_ATLE

March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 0.3 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
ZEZR-AZRAtBRE_TTRE_ATLH

March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 0.3 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
EEME-AtAE_TTRE_ATLH

9,000,000 - 9,000,000

Category: Employees
B k8 September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
TEE-ENALAE-EERF-_ATLE

March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 0.3 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
ZZZR-AZRAtBE_ZTRE_ATLH

March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 0.3 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
CIENEZA+AE-TERE-Rt+E

7,200,000 (7,200,000) -

Category: Legal advisor
B8R AEER March 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
TEZ-FCZRtHAE-EERF-_ATLE

2,400,000 - 2,400,000
Total all categories
2HER A 18,600,000 (7,200,000) 11,400,000
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25. SHARE OPTION (continued) 25. RBRE (H)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BRABMABRARBRETS (&)
For the year ended 31 March, 2003 REZ-FE=F=A=1T—HIEFE
Number of share options
BREYR
Exercise price  Outstanding at  Lapsed during  Outstanding at
Exercisable period per share April 1, 2002 the year ~ March 31, 2003
R=Z22=fF R-BB=F
mA-H rEE ZR=t-H
TSR THE i REATE b3 i R E AT
HK$
B

Category: Directors
B E% September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 4,500,000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000

CERT_ENALRECETRRF_ATLA

March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 0.3 4,500,000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000
ZZT-A=AtRZE-ETRF_A+LH

March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 0.3 4,500,000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000
ZTME=AtRZE-ETRF_A+LA

13,500,000 (4,500,000) 9,000,000

Category: Employees
Bil &R September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 3,200,000 (800,000) 2,400,000
TEE-ENALAE-EERF-_ATLE

March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 0.3 3,200,000 (800,000) 2,400,000
“ZT-A=AtRZE-ETRF_A+LH

March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 3,200,000 (800,000) 2,400,000
“ETME-AAE-FTRF-A+LA

9,600,000 (2,400,000) 7,200,000

Category: Legal advisor
BR - AEER March 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
“EE-F-RtBE-EERF-AtLA

2,400,000 - 2,400,000
Total all categories
2HER G 25,500,000 (6,900,000) 18,600,000
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25. SHARE OPTION (continued) 25. MBI E (E)
(i) Share Option Scheme (i) RERETE

On 1 February, 2002, another share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) was approved pursuant to a
resolution of the shareholders of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected individuals to
subscribe for shares in the Company as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, invite any full-time or part-time employee of
the Company or any member of the Group, including any
director of any member of the Group and any advisor or
consultant (in areas of technical, financial or corporate
managerial) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
take up options to subscribe for the shares in the Company
for a consideration of HK$1 each lot of share option
granted. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a
period of 10 years commencing on 1 February, 2002. The
option period shall not be less than 3 years and not exceed
10 years from the date of acceptance of option. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptable
of an option within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
in aggregate exceed 46,900,000 shares, which represent
10% of the shares in issue as at 7 March, 2002, being the
date of listing of the Company’s shares on GEM, unless
approval from the Company’s shareholders has been
obtained. The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted to each individual in any twelve-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at the date of grant unless approval
from Company’s shareholders has been obtained.

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified
option period. The exercise price shall be determined by
the directors of the Company, and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated on GEM'’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share options have been granted by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

WN-ZEE-_F-F—H AQaRER
NA—BERERZE I ARMN—IER
AR HERT 2 -

RERETIZENEERARA AR
REBALRERBRERBARAR
0 ERERERASEMELNEE
ZERBAOH - EECAHBEREFLL
ARAEEEARE LA ZEMERE
FRBEE (BRASEEMKBERARZE
WEE) RA QA S H AL B R AR
i B EERGHEZ EAEAAA
R BERREREAZBEARRAR
- MEMAREREZALERENE
BRURBREMN BTRE - BBERE
FERE_ET_F_HA-HEETF
RER - BEREDREABIIRN=F
MABBRMEMNZERER BT
FoRBREENTOEZANEBERA
ROHE - MEABBERE - AARE
HEHEF T NABXM BT -

BrIEE AR AR EA A - BIZADQAIR
BEXAFRBRATRERET S T
2 W& 1 42 BT 7] 481 46,900,000 f% - {h
AARIRMR _EE _F=R A&
ERETEAZEZEITREI0% - &M
BERMATRERERERS  HNEHEE
HHER T @A BEER REA (BE
REBBAA)  ZERLERETFTRLZR
BREETFEERBALRAREZE
HABZEBETREZ1%  BRIEERA
ARELE  BRATEENRBRET
ZERIAL -

RERETREERLABRERET
- ARABRHZEBRTHEZEE
FMBATHN=BEZ&E : ()ARAR
PDREERBBRE R AR ERE AR
BERARZEHE (DR ERR
AR AERL R 2 FHRTE : Kii)
ARABRIDEE -

BARBRADBRESEURRER
R
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25. SHARE OPTION (continued)
The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue or
grant of options must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares
in issue from time to time.

25. RBKRE (F)

BEERR

FIHR AR AT SRR A AE AT B - BB

BAB RS RBETHAR L BBERE ZENE
&t B L R A AT 2T W R ETTE
RERERTERA TETZROBLER
REFFHAXRAIKDETRHI0% -

26. RESERVES 26. f#fE

Accumulated

Share profits
premium (losses) Total

KR
12 5 E (B #8) @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

THE COMPANY NN

At 1 April, 2002 R-ZZE-_FMA—H 19,008,723 590,833 19,599,556
Dividend paid BERKRE - (586,250) (586,250)
Net loss for the year FEBIETSE - (53,782,499) (53,782,499)
At 31 March, 2003 “EEZFZA=+—H 19,008,723 (53,777,916)  (34,769,193)
Net loss for the year FEBIETSE - (18,572,921) (18,572,921)
At 31 March, 2004 “EENFEZA=+—H 19,008,723 (72,350,837)  (53,342,114)
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RESERVES (continued)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution include the
share premium and accumulated profits (losses). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law"), the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realised
or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account
which can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with
the Companies Law.

In the opinion of the directors, as at 31 March, 2004, the

Company does not have any reserves available for distribution
(2003: Nil).

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, a creditor in respect of an amount of
HK$2,500,000 had confirmed that such amount would not be
demanded for repayment within twelve months from the balance
sheet date, accordingly the amount had been reclassified as
non-current liabilities.

26.

27.

W (&)

ARRAA 2 Ik BB 0 4 B & 2 i 7 (/8
B) - RERSHEBERENELTE (KE
i) (TR AED) - ARARBRM EERRERRS
R RE - AT ARAABERR
NEAA - ERAERRANERE D IKEX
MHERE®R  NAERNEERAREEBBRES
BIEMMER > TAFERD KRR RE - ]
BARAMABER  RERAKAQFCDE
RYARBRENINENEREIEZRART
BREEZEMNFHEEPHRESIREAA - £E
BERRBRNAET  REFA 8RO
BRI RAAREAFLAEZEMNEGLE
CHREPRET RIS

ﬁ%um E/\\:77PI|¢ H + H ’$
DA EA AR EAEE (CET =5
&) o

TEFRERS

REFER - SEENKIESE2,500,0008
T REERABRRREEBRAF T @A
AT ERERBZENIE  WZEFED
flﬁgFmL@J%{ ZﬂJEE °

28. WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT COMMITMENT 28. UL BA R ARIE
THE GROUP
r%H
2004 2003
—EENME —EE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Commitment in respect of website RPURAE BTN

development contracted for but not BRRIBEREEE

provided in the financial statements A - 200,000
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29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitment for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
lease which fall due as follows:

29. REHNESE

REER  AEERBIIHBELERNZ
ARFLINHEEAZEDT

THE GROUP
FEE
2004 2003
—EENME —EE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FHRA 980,000 29,434
In the second to fifth years inclusive “ERF 929,946 -
1,909,946 29,434
30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 30. BB R E

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme") for all employees. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The retirement benefits cost charged to income statement
represents contributions payable to the MPF scheme by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

At the balance sheet date, there was no forfeited contributions
available to reduce future contributions (2003: Nil).
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEREALRS
In addition to transactions and balances with related parties BRETEE 18 R2IFMIMERGHEALTET IR
disclosed in notes 18 and 21 to the financial statements, the REFN  AEEBRAFEEABRBEAT
Group has entered into the following transactions with related BHEITTIRS :
parties during the year:
Name of related party Nature of transaction Notes 2004 2003
FHEALTER REME fit i —EENE —EE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fairco Investments Limited Rental paid and payable (i), (ii) - 900,000
EEREFRAA ENREMES
Notes: Brat
(i)  The transaction was determined based on the terms agreed by (i) RHEVEFBARAMBEZ GRMETE -
the companies concerned.
(i) Mr. Wong Cheah Foo, a director of the Company, has beneficial iy EZEBEARERZARBEEZ B -
interest in this company.
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 32. FEBRER

32.

Subsequent to 31 March, 2004, the Group had incurred the
following events:

(i)

(ii)

There was draw-down of approximately HK$1,400,000 by
the Group to meet its daily working capital requirements
out of the loan mentioned in note 2 to the financial
statements. The balance of loan to be available to the
Group amounted to approximately HK$4,800,000.

At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 10 May, 2004,
a special resolution was passed to approve on a proposal
to reduce the Company’s share capital.

Upon implementation, the nominal value of each of the
469,000,000 shares in issue would be reduced by HK$0.09
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01, resulting in the existing issued
share capital of the Company in the aggregate of
HK$46,900,000 reduced by HK$42,210,000 to
HK$4,690,000. Following this capital reduction and
cancellation of existing shares, the authorised share capital
of the Company would be HK$200,000,000 but divided
into 20,000,000,000 new shares.

The Cayman Islands Court hearing date is scheduled for
July 23, 2004 and trading of the new shares is expected to
commence shortly thereafter, upon the GEM Listing
Committee’s grant for the listing of and permission to deal
in the new shares. This will provide greater flexibility to
the Company in pricing future capital raising exercises when
circumstances arise.

RZZZEMEF=A=+—H FAEEZ%LE
THER :

() AEECHBMBREMF 20T E TR
#1,400,0008 T BN AR LEESL R
K e AREEANFERAZERBRENA
4,800,0007& 7T °

ZTMERATRE  RREFZ

(i W=
BBEIRARRASEE

5

2 E1TH 317 469,000,000 17 2 AL
EE € R K 0.09% T (B 0.108 LR =
0.0187m) + BRESE DA BITRITHA
346,900,000 % 7R, 242,210,000/ 7T
54,690,000/ 70 © 7E 5B % AN R 8
RBolkhE 28%EEREABEE A
200,000,000 7T + # 1£20,000,000,000
ik e

REHSZEREREEHAN_ZZ
MELAZ+=HAKRH  FAERLET
ZESEBENRERRBLAEEER - &
ReMERrRS  REIERARBES
ElTEBLEABM -
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & % % % i i

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=+—HILFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. MBARFHE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March, 2004 RZZETWNFE=A=+—H £ARESHB
are as follows: RAEIFEET
Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Class of paid up capital held
Name of subsidiary operation shares held capital by the Company  Principal activities
550 ERAEE
ML FERE  R2E ERITRA
WERARERE F-$oh 55 BRRE [ERENER TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# CF:3
% %
NCM Life Sciences Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive
Technology Limited N LiER 10,0003 7T TmEE
NCM Shoji Co. Limited Japan Ordinary JYP10,000,000 - 70 Retailing of pharmaceutical
BA LAk 10,000,000 B products
TEREEM
New Chinese Medicine British Virgin Ordinary US$200 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands TRk 200% 7T REEK
AERAES
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited Bk ERil 10,0007 7T distribution of
MEEER AT pharmaceutical products
REBBRRDHBEER
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Internet based medical
(HK) Limited S LR 10,000/ 1T treatment and retailing
FHE (BB AR AT of modern
Chinese medicines
NWEBBRERY
BERTRETE
New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive
International Limited N LiER 10,000 7T TmEx
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf % 3 & Fff &

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 HEZEZZTTNF=F=1+—HILFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. MDA F 15 (&)
Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/ Class of paid up capital held
Name of subsidiary operation shares held capital by the Company  Principal activities
28T VNNCTE ST
ML, Frs R4 k2E gETRA
WELRER TEHY L] BRERA HEEDL TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# &
% %
New Chinese Medicine Commonwealth ~ Ordinary US$1,000 - 100 Owner of the registered
(Website) Limited of the LiER 1,000 T domain name of
A E(EA)BRAH Northern www.newchinesemedic.com
Mariana www.newchinesemedic.com
Islands BazELHEA
LEELH
FEHANE
Wondergold Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Retailing of pharmaceutical
BEERAA N0 LAk 10,000% 7T products
TEEEEMR
34. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 4. LEHF
Certain financial information relating to interest in a jointly HEZZZE-F-A-+—HLFEFHER
controlled entity, amount due to directors and amount due to —HAFHEEER  ENESREREN
related companies for the year ended 31 March, 2003 has been BEAFAREZETHBRENBETHHEU
re-classified to conform with the current year's presentation. HeErFEZE2HAA -

#MEEzERER2A New CHNesE Mebicne HoLpings LiMITED 63




G4

ANNUAL ReporT 2004 = 3

FINANCIAL SUMMARY §f % # Z

For the year ended 31 March, 2004 BZ_ZTTWNF=A=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 March,
HE=ZA=+-HLEFE

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
“ETEF -TE-F CZFP-F C-FTSHF | —REMF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Results E¥
Turnover EEH 37,196,115 34,096,317 26,595,352 14,021,237 636,406
Profit (loss) before taxation — AT &7 (E18) 16,905,040 6,217,705 2,424,505  (27,834,737)| (23,882,091)
Taxation A (2,600,000)  (1,107,734) (269,766) (3,848) (5,166)
Profit (loss) before minority & &T 4 % 5% & A1
interest wA (8 18) 14,305,040 5,109,971 2,154,739 (27,838,585) | (23,887,257)
Minority interest DERRER - - - 191,850 -
Profit (loss) for the year REEEFE
attributable w5 8)
to shareholders 14,305,040 5,109,971 2,154,739 (27,646,735) | (23,887,257)
At 31 March,
R=A=+-8H
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
“ETEF -TE-F CZFP-F -FTSHF | —REMF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Assets and liabilities EERAR
Total assets BEE 27,395,308 44,839,980 42,297,332 20,409,345 2,523,679
Total liabilities and minority ~ #& & &
interest DHREFE (14,316,251) (26,660,921)  (4,053,282) (10,295,478) | (16,058,552)
Net assets (liabilities) FEE(ARE) 13,079,057 18,179,059 38,244,050 10,113,867 | (13,534,873)
Note: Kzt -

Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Growth Enterprises Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became the holding company
of the Group on 6 August, 2001. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with effect from 7 March, 2002.
The Group resulting from the group reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the merger accounting basis as if the Company had always been the
holding company of the Group. The results for the two years ended 31
March, 2000 and 2001 have been extracted from the Company's prospectus
dated 25 February, 2002.
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REBBARABRDERBHARIMARLD A
(T Fr) ) BIZERTS ([RIZIR ) £ - A2 AR
EfBRR A THRE [(AE8])ENTEHE ((SEE
) UEBEBAEEZ BZE  ARANZTE—F
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ZE_F-AtAR—EEBIMAIERLT - &
SECREEEHEHRARELEEE - At -
AEBZHBERRDERAAFSHEERE TR
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